# THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY MET IN REGULAR SESSION ON THIS DATE WITH THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT:

Present: James Ward (Absent), Deborah Martin, Donald Wuertz

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-956**

# IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR PERSONNEL MATTERS AND AT 8:30 AM:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to adjourn into Executive Session.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Absent Mrs. Martin Aye Mr.	Wuertz Aye
--	------------

**RESOLUTION NO. 00-957** 

#### IN THE MATTER OF ADJOURNING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION AT 8:59 AM:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to adjourn out of Executive Session:

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Absent

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-958**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETINGS HELD NOVEMBER 13, 2000:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to dispense with the reading of the minutes and resolutions of the regular meeting held November 13, 2000, and to approve resolutions and minutes as submitted.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent	Mrs. Martin	Aye

# **PUBLIC COMMENT**

Jane Stull, Kay Barry, and Judy Brozak spoke against the possible purchase of the land at the corner of Olentangy River Road where Carriage Road dead ends to be used to align Orange Road and Carriage Road. See minutes for details.

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-959**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING FOR PAYMENT WARRANTS NUMBERED 287750 THROUGH 289152:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve for payment warrants 287750 through 289152 on file in the office of the Delaware County Commissioners.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Absent Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-960**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING TRAVEL EXPENSE REQUESTS:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the following:

Juvenile Court is requesting that Donna Sigl-Davies attend the Family Therapy Group Consultation Training at Columbus on each Wednesday starting February 21 through April 25, 2001, in the amount of \$150.00.

Auditor is requesting that Melissa Lobdell attend the HTML Website Training Class at Columbus State Campus on November 17 & 21, 2000, in the amount of \$130.00.

Job and Family Services is requesting that Sam Keckler attend the Sexual Offender Profiling School at Columbus on December 4 through December 5, 2000, in the amount of \$209.00. (Sheriff to pay \$104.50 of \$209.00)

Job and Family Services is requesting that Rhonda Leasure and Tammy Mannasmith attend the Head Start Childcare Partnership Regional Leadership Forum at Columbus on November 28, 2000, in the amount of \$40.00.

Juvenile Court is requesting that Steve Hanson, Michelle Delery, Julie Black, Laurie Scholz and Ken Spicer attend the Juvenile and Family Drug Court Conference at Miami, Florida on January 10 through January 13, 2001, in the amount of \$6,227.50.

Vote on Motion	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-961**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING TRANSFER OF FUNDS, APPROPRIATIONS, AND SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the following:

TRANSFER OF APPROPRIATIO		
FROM:	TO:	AMOUNT:
001-3310-010 Gen Fund/Sheriff - Salaries	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee - Equipment	\$ 60,000.00
001-3310-012 Gen Fund/Sheriff - PERS	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee - Equipment	\$ 62,000.00
001-3320-010 Gen Fund/Jail - Salaries	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee – Equipment	\$ 60,000.00
001-3320-012 Gen Fund/Jail - PERS	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee – Equipment	\$ 25,000.00
001-3350-010 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee - Salaries	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee – Equipment	\$ 190,000.00
001-3350-011 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee - Benefits	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee – Equipment	\$ 50,000.00
001-3350-012 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee - PERS	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee – Equipment	\$ 40,000.00
001-3360-010 Gen Fund/Sheriff - Salaries	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee – Equipment	\$ 57,000.00
001-3360-012 Gen Fund/Sheriff - PERS	001-3350-040 Gen Fund/Conveyance Fee – Equipment	\$ 9,000.00
111-4530-020 Child Srvs - Srvs & Chrgs	111-4535-020 Child Srvs/Cluster - Srvs & Chrgs	\$ 60,000.00
020-2010-047 MRDD - Transfers	020-2010-030 MRDD – Grants	\$ 100,000.00
Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz	Aye Mr. Ward Absent Mrs. J	Martin Aye

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-962**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE PLAT FOR SAGE CREEK SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AND PLAN FOR RATTLESNAKE RIDGE:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the plat and plan:

# Sage Creek Subdivision, Phase One

Situated in the State of Ohio, County of Delaware, Township of Berkshire, Range 17, Township 4, Section 4, United States Military Lands and part of Farm Lot 24 containing a total of 1.947 Acres of private Rights-of-Way and in the Township of Genoa, Range 17, Township 3, Section 1, United States Military Lands and part of Farm Lot 5 containing 3.480 Acres of private Rights-of-Way and 33.742 Acres of Lots out of the original 85.690 Acres of Lots as conveyed by deed to SJDJ, Ltd., as recorded in Deed Book 642, page 388, Recorder's Office, Delaware County, Ohio. Lot fee in the amount of \$63.00.

#### **Rattlesnake Ridge**

Street & Water Improvements for Trenton Township, Range 16, Township 4, Section 4, Farm Lot 28, USML, Delaware County

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Absent Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-963**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENTS FOR HIGHLAND LAKES EAST, SECTION 11, PHASES 4 & 5:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the Subdivider's Agreements:

# Highland Lakes East, Section 11, Phase 4

THIS AGREEMENT executed on this 20<sup>th</sup> day of November 2000, between **DOMINION HOMES** as evidenced by the **HIGHLAND LAKES EAST SECTION 11, PHASE 4** Construction plans filed with the **Delaware County Engineer**, Delaware County, Ohio and the **BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO** is governed by the following considerations, to wit:

Said **SUBDIVIDER** is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this **AGREEMENT**, said **SUBDIVIDER** shall, at the time of plat approval, execute bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of any remaining construction as shown in the Engineer's Estimate approved 6/5/00, which is acceptable to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** to insure faithful performance of this **AGREEMENT** and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the **Subdivision Regulations** of Delaware County, Ohio. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall pay the entire cost and expense of all improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and save harmless the **County, Townships and/or Villages** and all of their officials, employees or agents from all claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any actions or omissions of any contractor or subcontractor or from any material, including explosives, or any method used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one year from the date of the approval of said subdivision by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**. But an extension of time may be granted if approved by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading plans and specifications and shall have the authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the **COUNTY**. The representative shall be replaced by the **SUBDIVIDER** when, in the opinion of the **COUNTY**, his performance is deemed inadequate.

If no bonding or performance surety has been filed, then no subdivision plat will be approved until a performance bond has been approved or until all public improvements have been made. In either case, the **SUBDIVIDER** further agrees that any violations or non- compliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this **AGREEMENT** shall constitute a breach of contract and the **COUNTY** shall have the right to stop work forthwith.

If a subdivision plat has been approved with the necessary bonding, then the **COUNTY** shall have the right to act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this subdivision.

# **ROADWAY AND STORM DRAINAGE**

It is further agreed that upon execution of the AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit TWENTY-SEVEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the Delaware County Engineer and, if deemed necessary by the Delaware County Engineer, testing by an independent laboratory, and the cost of street and traffic control signs. When the fund has been depleted to thirty percent (30%) of the original amount deposited, the SUBDIVIDER shall replenish the account, upon notice by the Delaware County Engineer. Upon completion and acceptance of the construction, the remaining amount in the fund shall be returned to the SUBDIVIDER, with the exception of a nominal amount for the final inspection at the end of the maintenance period.

The **County** reserves the right during construction and thereafter to permit connection of adjoining properties within the original drainage basin to the storm sewer system.

Upon completion of construction, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair or reconstruction of any and all defective materials or workmanship for a period of one year. Said **SUBDIVIDER'S** bond or certified check or irrevocable letter of credit may be reduced to an amount estimated by the **County Engineer** for said maintenance. The reduction may be approved only after the **County Engineer** has been provided evidence that all work has been accomplished according to the approved plan and/or to the **County Engineer's** satisfaction. All work is to be done in accordance to the **Ohio Department of Transportation Specifications.** 

Acceptance of the roads and drainage structures in said subdivision into the public system shall be completed only after written notice to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** from the **County Engineer** of his approval. The **SUBDIVIDER'S** maintenance responsibility as described above shall be completed upon formal acceptance by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

Any snow and ice removal or other safety requirements deemed necessary by the **County Engineer** during the period of construction or maintenance shall be the responsibility of the **SUBDIVIDER**. All of the funds set forth in the **AGREEMENT** shall be made available to the **County Engineer** to ensure proper safety compliance.

# **CONSTRUCTION**

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days following the completion of construction and prior to final acceptance, furnish to **Delaware County**, as required, "as-built" drawings of the improvements, which plans shall become the property of the **County** and remain in the office of the **Delaware County Engineer**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the **County** an itemized statement showing the cost of improvements and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and hold harmless the **County** from expenses or claims for labor or material incident to said construction of improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, during construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the **County** regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of the improvements and for their continued operation. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. Utility user charges shall be paid by the **SUBDIVIDER** and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the **County**.

Should the **SUBDIVIDER** become unable to carry out the provisions of this **AGREEMENT**, the **SUBDIVIDER'S** heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions and requirements of this **AGREEMENT**.

In consideration whereof, the **BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO** hereby grants the **SUBDIVIDER** or his agent the right and privilege to make the improvements stipulated herein.

#### Highland Lakes East, Section 11, Phase 5

THIS AGREEMENT executed on this 20<sup>th</sup> day of November 2000, between **DOMINION HOMES** as evidenced by the **HIGHLAND LAKES EAST SECTION 11, PHASE 5** Construction plans filed with the **Delaware County Engineer,** Delaware County, Ohio and the **BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO** is governed by the following considerations, to wit:

Said **SUBDIVIDER** is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this **AGREEMENT**, said **SUBDIVIDER** shall, at the time of plat approval, execute bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of any remaining construction as shown in the Engineer's Estimate approved 6/5/00, which is acceptable to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** to insure faithful performance of this **AGREEMENT** and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the **Subdivision Regulations** of Delaware County, Ohio. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall pay the entire cost and expense of all improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and save harmless the **County, Townships and/or Villages** and all of their officials, employees or agents from all claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any actions or omissions of any contractor or subcontractor or from any material, including explosives, or any method used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one year from the date of the approval of said subdivision by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**. But an extension of time may be granted if approved by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading plans and specifications and shall have the authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the **COUNTY**. The representative shall be replaced by the **SUBDIVIDER** when, in the opinion of the **COUNTY**, his performance is deemed inadequate.

If no bonding or performance surety has been filed, then no subdivision plat will be approved until a performance bond has been approved or until all public improvements have been made. In either case, the **SUBDIVIDER** further agrees that any violations or non- compliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this **AGREEMENT** shall constitute a breach of contract and the **COUNTY** shall have the right to stop work forthwith.

If a subdivision plat has been approved with the necessary bonding, then the **COUNTY** shall have the right to act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this subdivision.

#### **ROADWAY AND STORM DRAINAGE**

It is further agreed that upon execution of the AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit SIXTEEN THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the Delaware County Engineer and, if deemed necessary by the Delaware County Engineer, testing by an independent laboratory, and the cost of street and traffic control signs. When the fund has been depleted to thirty percent (30%) of the original amount deposited, the SUBDIVIDER shall replenish the account, upon notice by the Delaware County Engineer. Upon completion and acceptance of the construction, the remaining amount in the fund shall be returned to the SUBDIVIDER, with the exception of a nominal amount for the final inspection

#### at the end of the maintenance period.

The **County** reserves the right during construction and thereafter to permit connection of adjoining properties within the original drainage basin to the storm sewer system.

Upon completion of construction, the **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair or reconstruction of any and all defective materials or workmanship for a period of one year. Said **SUBDIVIDER'S** bond or certified check or irrevocable letter of credit may be reduced to an amount estimated by the **County Engineer** for said maintenance. The reduction may be approved only after the **County Engineer** has been provided evidence that all work has been accomplished according to the approved plan and/or to the **County Engineer's** satisfaction. All work is to be done in accordance to the **Ohio Department of Transportation Specifications.** 

Acceptance of the roads and drainage structures in said subdivision into the public system shall be completed only after written notice to the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS** from the **County Engineer** of his approval. The **SUBDIVIDER'S** maintenance responsibility as described above shall be completed upon formal acceptance by the **COUNTY COMMISSIONERS**.

Any snow and ice removal or other safety requirements deemed necessary by the **County Engineer** during the period of construction or maintenance shall be the responsibility of the **SUBDIVIDER**. All of the funds set forth in the **AGREEMENT** shall be made available to the **County Engineer** to ensure proper safety compliance.

# **CONSTRUCTION**

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days following the completion of construction and prior to final acceptance, furnish to **Delaware County**, as required, "as-built" drawings of the improvements, which plans shall become the property of the **County** and remain in the office of the **Delaware County Engineer**.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the **County** an itemized statement showing the cost of improvements and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall indemnify and hold harmless the **County** from expenses or claims for labor or material incident to said construction of improvements.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall, during construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the **County** regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The **SUBDIVIDER** shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of the improvements and for their continued operation. The **SUBDIVIDER** shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. Utility user charges shall be paid by the **SUBDIVIDER** and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the **County**.

Should the **SUBDIVIDER** become unable to carry out the provisions of this **AGREEMENT**, the **SUBDIVIDER'S** heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions and requirements of this **AGREEMENT**.

In consideration whereof, the **BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF DELAWARE COUNTY, OHIO** hereby grants the **SUBDIVIDER** or his agent the right and privilege to make the improvements stipulated herein.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Absent

## **RESOLUTION NO. 00-964**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING RIGHT OF WAY WORK PERMIT SUMMARY SHEET:

It was moved by Mrs. Martin, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to approve the following work permits:

Permit #	Applicant	Location	Type of Work
U000162	Ameritech	Old 3C Highway	Place buried cable
U000163	Del-Co Water	Whipple Road	Install water line
U000166	Columbia Gas	Sunset Drive	Install gas main
U000167	Columbia Gas	Sunbury Road	Install gas main
U000168	Del-Co Water	Seldom Seen Road	Install water line
U000169	Suburban Natural Gas	Abbey Knoll Section 1	Lay plastic pipe

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Absent Mrs. Martin Aye

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-965**

#### IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING STOP CONDITIONS ON PIATT AND SHANAHAN ROADS:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to authorize stop conditions:

#### **Piatt and Shanahan Roads**

- On southbound Township Road Number 99, Piatt Road, at its intersection with Township Road Number 100, Shanahan Road
- On eastbound Township Road Number 100, Shanahan Road, at its intersection with Township Road Number

99, Pi	att Road						
Vote on M	lotion	Mr. Ward	Absent	Mrs. Mart	in Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye
RESOLU	TION NO	. 00-966					
IN THE N	MATTER	OF APPROVIN	G PERSON	NEL ACTIO	NS:		
It was mov	ved by Mr.	Wuertz, seconded	by Mrs. Ma	artin to approve	the following:		
Amy Compton has accepted the position of Secretary for Administrative Services; effective date of hire is November 28, 2000.							
Vote on M	lotion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent	Mrs. Martin	Aye
RESOLU	TION NO	. 00-967					
IN THE MATTER OF RE-APPOINTING TRACY WHITED AS THE DELAWARE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' REPRESENTATIVE TO THE COUNCIL FOR OLDER ADULTS:							
It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the re-appointment:							
Whereas, The Board of Commissioners of Delaware County is responsible to make appointments from the public to various boards, councils and committees, and							
Whereas, the Board of Commissioners of Delaware County shall re-appoint individual(s) to the Council for Older Adults for a three (3) year term, beginning January 1, 2001 and ending December 31, 2003.							
Therefore,	be it resol	ved that the Board	l of Commis	ssioners at Dela	ware County, S	tate of Ohio, re-a	ppoint Tracy

# Therefore, be it resolved that the Board of Commissioners at Delaware County, State of Ohio, re-appoint Tracy Whited to the Council for Older Adults.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Ward	Absent	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye
----------------	----------	--------	-------------	-----	------------	-----

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-968**

## IN THE MATTER OF RE-APPOINTING MATTHEW MONTAGUE AND DEBRA LAMP AND APPOINTING ROBERT TANNER, JR. AS THE DELAWARE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' REPRESENTATIVES' TO THE DELAWARE COUNTY TRANSIT BOARD:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the appointments:

- Whereas, The Board of Commissioners of Delaware County is responsible to make appointments from the public to various boards, councils and committees, and
- Whereas, the Board of Commissioners of Delaware County shall re-appoint individual(s) to the Delaware County Transit Board for a three year term beginning November 20, 2000, and ending November 19, 2003, and appoint an individual to the Delaware County Transit Board to complete a three year term beginning November 20, 2000, and ending October 24, 2002,
- Therefore, be it resolved that the Board of Commissioners at Delaware County, State of Ohio, re-appoint Matthew Montague and Debra Lamp and appoint Robert Tanner, Jr. to the Delaware County District Transit Board.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent	Mrs. Martin	Aye
----------------	------------	-----	----------	--------	-------------	-----

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-969**

#### IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION FOR JUVENILE ACCOUNTABILITY INCENTIVE BLOCK GRANT TO THE OFFICE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES FOR THE PROVISION OF PROBATION SERVICES IN THE CITY AND COUNTY SCHOOLS:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to authorize the submittal of application for Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant in the amount of \$22,559.00.

Vote on Motion	Mrs. Martin	Aye	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent
----------------	-------------	-----	------------	-----	----------	--------

**RESOLUTION NO. 00-970** 

# IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF DELAWARE COUNTY'S COMMUNITY HOUSING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FISCAL YEAR 1999 RESIDENTIAL RENTAL REHABILITATION POLICIES REGARDING NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to authorize the amendment:

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Development provides financial assistance to local governments under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the purpose of addressing local government needs; and

WHEREAS, the Delaware County Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP) is one such program receiving financial assistance under the CDBG program for the purpose of addressing local housing needs throughout the county; and

WHEREAS, the County applied for and was approved for grant funding under the CDBG CHIP for Fiscal Year 1999; and

WHEREAS, the County established a set of policies for the use of CHIP funds as part of the County's application to the State of Ohio, Department of Development, for said funds; and

WHEREAS, these policies were adopted by the County when the application was approved by the State of Ohio, and are the basis for administering the County's CHIP for Fiscal Year 1999; and

WHEREAS, said policies, which currently apply to profit and not-for-profit entities alike, state, in part, that CHIPfunded rental rehabilitation assistance shall finance only up to 50% of the total rehabilitation cost with CHIP participation not exceeding \$12,000 per unit and that any remaining cost of rehabilitation shall be covered by bank and/or cash equity participation, and that all assistance will be on a dollar for dollar matching basis, up to the maximum permitted, and that any funding required over the unit maximum to meet RRS and local codes must be provided by the landlord; and

WHEREAS, the Ashley Villa, a not-for-profit incorporated housing community for low income qualified seniors and handicapped renters located within Delaware County has requested assistance through the County CHIP, through the Rental Rehabilitation Program, but lacks the financial resources to meet the stated leveraging requirement in the County's CHIP policies.

NOW THEREFORE, PURSUANT TO THE FOREGOING, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Delaware, State of Ohio as follows:

Section 1. That the Delaware County Board of Commissioners determines that the Delaware County CHIP policies should be amended to waive the leveraging requirements for non-profit entities to participate in the County CHIP Rental Rehabilitation Program.

Section 2. Such a waiver for non-profit entities will be based on and limited to the applicant's ability to financially contribute to covering the costs of a given project. A deferred loan consisting of CHIP grant funding for the non-profit project shall be secured with a 10-year declining lien against the real estate, with the net value of the rental rehabilitation assistance to be forgiven at the rate of 10% per year as long as the applicant borrower continues to hold title to the property and rental units are provided to low-moderate income individuals. Any outstanding principal balance shall be due to the County if the property is sold within the 10-year term of the deferred loan.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent	Mrs. Martin	Aye
----------------	------------	-----	----------	--------	-------------	-----

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-971**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPOINTING THE LABOR COMPLIANCE OFFICER FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded Mrs. Martin to approve the resolution:

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Development provides financial assistance to local governments under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the purpose of addressing local government needs; and

WHEREAS, Delaware County has the authority to apply for financial assistance and to administer funds received from the Ohio Department of Development, through the Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Development requires local governments participating in the Small Cities CDBG Program to designate a Labor Standards Compliance Officer for all CDBG-assisted projects.

NOW THEREFORE, PURSUANT TO THE FOREGOING, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Delaware, State of Ohio as follows:

Section 1. That the Delaware County Board of Commissioners appoints Timothy M. Boland, County Economic Development Director, to serve as the Delaware County CDBG Labor Compliance Officer. Via this appointment, Mr. Boland replaces Carrie Richards who previously served as the County's CDBG Labor Compliance Officer.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Absent

**RESOLUTION NO. 00-972** 

# IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH LEIGHTY & SNIDER, INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF CONSULTING SERVICES FOR PREPARATION OF THE UPDATE OF THE DELAWARE COUNTY COMMUNITY HOUSING IMPROVEMENT STRATEGY (CHIS):

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to authorize the amendment:

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Development provides financial assistance to local governments under the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program for the purpose of addressing local government needs; and

WHEREAS, the Delaware County Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP) is one such program receiving financial assistance under the CDBG program for the purpose of addressing local housing needs throughout the county; and

WHEREAS, Delaware County anticipates applying for future CDBG program funding for the Delaware County CHIP; and

WHEREAS, to remain eligible for funding under the CDBG program for the CHIP, Delaware County is required to have an updated Community Housing Improvement Strategy (CHIS); and

WHEREAS, funding, in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) has been provided to Delaware County through the FY'00 CDBG Formula Program for updating the County's CHIS.

NOW THEREFORE, PURSUANT TO THE FOREGOING, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners, County of Delaware, State of Ohio as follows:

Section 1. That the Delaware County Board of Commissioners determine that based on price and experience, Leighty & Snider, Inc. is the best entity to provide consulting services to Delaware County for the purposes of updating the County's CHIS.

Section 2. That the Delaware County Board of Commissioners authorize the President of the Board to execute an Agreement for consulting services with Leighty & Snider, Inc. to update the Delaware County CHIS in an amount not to exceed Three Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$3,750).

Vote on Motion Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Absent Mrs. Martin Aye

# **RESOLUTION NO. 00-973**

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE CONTRACTS BETWEEN JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES AND BUCKEYE VALLEY WEST ELEMENTARY SACC, BUCKEYE VALLEY MIDDLE SCHOOL SACC, BUCKEYE VALLEY EAST ELEMENTARY SACC, CHILDREN'S WORLD LEARNING CENTER #614, CHILDREN'S WORLD LEARNING CENTER, CHILDREN'S WORLD LEARNING CENTER AND BUCKEYE VALLEY NORTH ELEMENTARY SACC:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded Mrs. Martin to approve the contracts:

#### **Buckeye Valley West Elementary SACC**

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Buckeye Valley West Elementary SACC, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 61 North Third Street, Ostrander, Oh 43061. Chapter 5104 of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

1. **<u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.

- 2. <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

#### 4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

(A) <u>Payment Rates</u>: The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit \_\_\_\_\_\_, if applicable).
 <u>Basic Rates</u>: All Rates are Per Day

(1) Kindergarten-Fifth Grade	<u>5 day Program</u>	8 day Punch Card
6:30 a.m. –9:15 a.m.	5.00	5.75
3:40 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.	5.00	5.75
6:30 a. m. – 9:15 a.m. and		
3:40 p.m. –6:00 p.m.	10.00	11.50
Kindergarten Only		
6:30 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.	13.00	13.50
6:30 a.m. –3:40 p.m.	11.00	11.50
9:15 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.	11.00	11.50
9:15 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.	9.00	9.50
11:45 a.m. – 3:40 p.m.	9.00	9.50

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Deposits:	Advances: Discounts: 25% off fees for siblings (equal or lesser value)
Registration Fees: \$15.00	
Transportation: One way	Round trip
Other (Please Specify):	

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **BILLING PROCEDURES:** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
  - (A) <u>Duplicate Billing</u>: The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
  - (B) **<u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u>** The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
    - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
    - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate

billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.

6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

# 7. ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:

# (A) **<u>Eligibility Determinations:</u>**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
  - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)). Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

## (B) <u>Reimbursement</u>

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded childcare benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **<u>CIVIL RIGHTS</u>:** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all

persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

#### 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) **Indemnity:** Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) **Insurance:** Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. **Customary Charge:** In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

## **Buckeye Valley Middle School SACC**

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Buckeye Valley Middle Elementary SACC, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 638 Coover Road, Delaware, Ohio 43015. Chapter 5104 of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

1. **<u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2),

childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.

- 2. <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

# 4. COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES:

(A) <u>Payment Rates</u>: The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit \_\_\_\_\_\_, if applicable).

#### **Basic Rates:** All Rates are Per Day

(1) Kindergarten-Fifth Grade	<u>5 day Program</u>	<u>8 day Punch Card</u>	
6:30 a.m. – 9:15 a.m.	5.00	5.75	
3:40 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.	5.00	5.75	
6:30 a. m. – 9:15 a.m. and 3:40 p.m. –6:00 p.m.	10.00	11.50	

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Deposits:	Advances: Discounts: 25% off fees for siblings (equal or lesser value)
Registration Fees: \$15.00	
Transportation: One way	Round trip
Other (Please Specify):	

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. BILLING PROCEDURES: The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
  - (A) **Duplicate Billing:** The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
  - (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
    - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
    - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another,

including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.

6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

# 7. ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:

#### (A) **<u>Eligibility Determinations:</u>**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
  - X Department.
    Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)).
    Provider.
    Children Department is placed as a structure of the p

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

# (B) Reimbursement

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded childcare benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. <u>AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS</u>: The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **CIVIL RIGHTS:** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

# 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) **Insurance:** Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. **Customary Charge:** In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

#### **Buckeye Valley East Elementary SACC**

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Buckeye Valley East Elementary SACC, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 522 E. High Street, Ashley, Ohio 43003. Chapter 5104 of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

1. **<u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.

- 2. <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

#### 4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

(A) **Payment Rates:** The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit \_\_\_\_\_\_, if applicable).

#### **<u>Basic Rates</u>**: All Rates are Per Day

(1) Kindergarten-Fifth Grade	<u>5 day Program</u>	<u>8 day Punch Card</u>
6:30 a.m. – 9:15 a.m.	5.00	5.75
3:40 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.	5.00	5.75
6:30 a.m. – 9:15 a.m. and		
3:40 p.m. –6:00 p.m.	10.00	11.50
Kindergarten Only		
6:30 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.	13.00	13.50
6:30 a.m. –3:40 p.m.	11.00	11.50
9:15 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.	11.00	11.50
9:15 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.	9.00	9.50
11:45 a.m. – 3:40 p.m.	9.00	9.50

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Deposits:	Advances: Discounts: 25% off fees for siblings (equal or lesser value)
Registration Fees: \$15.00	
Transportation: One way	Round trip
Other (Please Specify):	

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **BILLING PROCEDURES:** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
  - (A) **Duplicate Billing:** The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
  - (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
    - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and

- (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.
- 6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

#### 7. ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:

#### (A) **<u>Eligibility Determinations:</u>**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
  - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)). Provider. ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

#### (B) <u>Reimbursement</u>

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. <u>**CIVIL RIGHTS:**</u> The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin,

handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

#### 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) **Indemnity:** Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) **Insurance:** Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>**Customary Charge:**</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

#### Children's World Learning Center #614

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Children's World Learning Center #614, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 10655 Sawmill Parkway, Powell, Oh 43065 and whose telephone number is (**614**) **799-1530**. Chapter 5104 of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

1. **<u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to

(

# COMMISSIONERS JOURNAL NO. 41 - DELAWARE COUNTY MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 20, 2000

furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.

- <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

#### 4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

(A) <u>Payment Rates</u>: The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit \_\_\_\_\_\_, if applicable).

#### **<u>Basic Rates</u>**: All Rates are Per Day

- Part Time: (less than 5 (1) **Full Time: (5 or more hours)** hours) Toddler \$22.40 \$15.00 Preschool \$20.00 \$13.40 \$19.00 \$12.60 Kindergarten School Age (no school) \$19.00 \$12.60 School Days 5 days 4 days 3 days 2 days 1 day After School \$9.20 \$10.25 \$12.60 \$12.60 \$11.67 Before & After \$14.80 \$18.00 \$19.00 \$16.75 \$19.00
- (2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees:		Advances:
Deposits:		Discounts:
Registration Fees:	\$25.00	
Transportation: One	way	Round trip

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **<u>BILLING PROCEDURES:</u>** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
  - (A) **Duplicate Billing:** The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
  - (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
    - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
    - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly

deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.

6. <u>ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:</u> The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

## 7. ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:

#### (A) **<u>Eligibility Determinations:</u>**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
  - Department. Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)). Provider. ChildCara Passource and Pafarral agency serving the county.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

# (B) Reimbursement

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **<u>CIVIL RIGHTS</u>:** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all

persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

#### 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) **Indemnity:** Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) **Insurance:** Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>**Customary Charge:**</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

#### **Children's World Learning Center**

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Children's World Learning Center, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located 1231 S. Sunbury Rd., Westerville, Ohio 43081. Chapter 5104 of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

1. **<u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.

- <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

## 4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

(A) <u>Payment Rates</u>: The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit \_\_\_\_\_\_, if applicable).

#### **<u>Basic Rates</u>**: All Rates are Per Day

(1

<u>day</u>	
3.00	
3.00	
9.60	
	<u>day</u> 13.00 13.00 19.60

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees:	Advances:
Deposits:	Discounts:
Registration Fees: \$25.00	
Transportation: One way	Round trip
Other (Please Specify):	

- (3) **Absentee Payment Policy:** The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **BILLING PROCEDURES:** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
  - (A) **Duplicate Billing:** The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
  - (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
    - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
    - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by

withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.

6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

# 7. ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:

#### (A) **<u>Eligibility Determinations:</u>**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
  - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)). Provider.

- ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.
- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

#### (B) Reimbursement

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **<u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u>** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

# 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) **Indemnity:** Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) <u>Insurance:</u> Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. **Customary Charge:** In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

#### Children's World Learning Center

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Children's World Learning Center, Worthington Woods, a licensed child care center, ated 401 Park Rd., Worthington, OH 43085 and whose telephone number is (614) 848-3002. Chapter 5104 of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

1. **<u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.

- <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- 3. <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

#### 4. <u>COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES</u>:

(A) **Payment Rates:** The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit \_\_\_\_\_\_, if applicable).

#### **<u>Basic Rates</u>**: All Rates are Per Day

(1)	1) Full Time: (5 or more hours)				<u>Part T</u> hours)	<u>'ime: (le</u>	<u>ss than 5</u>	
	Infant		\$28.40				\$19.00	
	Toddler	\$24.00				\$16.00		
	Preschool		\$21.20				\$14.20	
	Kindergarten		\$19.60				\$13.00	
	School Age (no	school)	\$19.60				\$13.00	
	School Days	5 days		4 days	3 days		2 days	1 day
	Before School	\$11.20		\$12.75	\$13.00		\$13.00	\$13.00
	After School	\$13.00		\$13.00	\$13.00		\$13.00	\$13.00
	Before & After	\$15.20		\$17.25	\$19.60		\$19.60	\$19.60

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees:	Advances:
Deposits:	Discounts:
Registration Fees: \$25.00	
Transportation: One way	Round trip
Other (Please Specify):	

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **BILLING PROCEDURES:** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
  - (A) **Duplicate Billing:** The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
  - (B) **<u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u>** The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
    - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
    - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by

withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.

6. **ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:** The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

# 7. ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:

#### (A) **<u>Eligibility Determinations:</u>**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
  - K Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)). Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

#### (B) Reimbursement

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. **INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS:** Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. **NOTE:** Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the **Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.**
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **CIVIL RIGHTS:** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

# 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) **Insurance:** Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. **Customary Charge:** In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

# **Buckeye Valley North Elementary SACC**

This contract is entered into on July 1, 2000 between the Delaware County Department of Job & Family Services ("Department") and Buckeye Valley North Elementary SACC, a licensed child care center, ("Provider"), located at 4230 St. Rt. 203, Radnor, Oh 43006. Chapter 5104 of the Ohio Revised Code and rules issued under that Chapter authorizes the county department to contract with licensed child care centers, licensed Type A Family Child Care Homes, certified Type B Family Child Care Homes, certified In-Home Aides, licensed preschool programs, licensed school child programs, and/or border state child care providers for the purchase of publicly funded child care services. Contract terms for providers follow.

1. **<u>PURCHASE OF SERVICES</u>**: The Department agrees to purchase for, and the Provider agrees to furnish to eligible individuals (see Article 7), throughout the entire contract period (see Article 2), childcare services per this agreement and any attached Exhibits. These services include: (A) Employment/Training, (B) Special Needs and (C) Protective child care services.

- <u>CONTRACT PERIOD</u>: This contract is effective from July 1, 2000 or upon execution, whichever is later. Unless terminated under Article 16, this contract will be in effect for a specified period of time ending June 30, 2001.
- <u>CONTRACT SERVICES</u>: Payment may be made for authorized "gaps" in parental employment or training and for actual services, (including negotiated absentee days per Article 4), delivered to authorized eligible recipients and contingent upon the availability of federal and state funds.

# 4. COST AND DELIVERY OF PURCHASED SERVICES:

(A) **Payment Rates:** The amount to be paid for the purchase of publicly funded child care services shall not exceed the Provider's customary charge to the public or the applicable reimbursement ceiling, whichever is lower. Provider reimbursement shall follow the rates below. Complete, check and/or circle all applicable payment criteria (See Exhibit \_\_\_\_\_\_, if applicable).

#### **Basic Rates:** All Rates are Per Day

(1

l)	Kindergarten-Fifth Grade	<u>5 day Program</u>	<u>8 day Punch Card</u>
	6:30 a.m. – 9:15 a.m.	5.00	5.75
	3:40 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.	5.00	5.75
	6:30 a.m. – 9:15 a.m. and		
	3:40 p.m. –6:00 p.m.	10.00	11.50
	Kindergarten Only		
	6:30 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.	13.00	13.50
	6:30 a.m. –3:40 p.m.	11.00	11.50
	9:15 a.m. – 6:00 p.m.	11.00	11.50
	9:15 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.	9.00	9.50
	11:45 a.m. – 3:40 p.m.	9.00	9.50

(2) <u>Adjustments to Basic Rates</u>: The following fees may be incorporated within the payment rate and/or payment schedule.

Activity Fees: Deposits:	Advances: Discounts: 25% off fees for siblings (equal or lesser value)
Registration Fees: \$15.00	
Transportation: One way	Round trip
Other (Please Specify):	

- (3) <u>Absentee Payment Policy:</u> The Department will reimburse the Provider <u>Eighteen (18)</u> absentee days per child during each six-month period that care is provided to a child. After five consecutive absentee days, the Provider shall report the absences to the Department in order to verify enrollment of the child with the Provider.
- (B) <u>Fees:</u> The Department shall pay a Provider only the amount of the cost of care for which the Department is responsible. The Provider shall collect any required family copayment from the parent. Any required copayment shall be subtracted from the Provider's reimbursement prior to payment by the Department.
- 5. **BILLING PROCEDURES:** The Provider will submit an invoice to the Department within 15 days following the last day of each billing period in accordance with Department procedures (see Exhibit, if applicable). The Department will review the invoice for completeness and accuracy prior to making payment within 30 days after receipt of an accurate invoice. An invoice that contains errors, incorrect rates or noncovered services is subject to adjustment prior to issuance of payment.
  - (A) <u>Duplicate Billing</u>: The Provider assures that claims made to the Department for payment shall be for authorized services rendered to eligible individuals and such claims shall not have been made against other funding sources for the same services.
  - (B) <u>Responsibility For Repayment:</u> The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying with any audit finding by appropriate state or federal audit or for any exception identified by the Department's record review or monitoring directly related to the performance of this contract. Responsibility includes repayment as follows:
    - (1) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for services not covered by the Provider's contract; and
    - (2) The Provider agrees to pay the Department the full amount of payment received for duplicate

billing, erroneous billings, deceptive claims or falsification. "Deceptive" means knowingly deceiving another, or causing another to be deceived, by a fake or misleading representation, by withholding information, by preventing another from acquiring information or by any other act, conduct or omission which creates, confirms or perpetuates a fake impression in another, including a fake impression as to the law, value, state of mind or other objective or subjective fact.

6. <u>ADDITIONAL FEES PAID BY CLIENTS:</u> The Provider agrees that publicly funded child care recipients shall not be required to pay fees other than the copayment set by the Department to the Provider and fees that are the responsibility of the department, as a condition for delivery of services under this contract.

#### 7. ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES:

# (A) **<u>Eligibility Determinations:</u>**

- (1) Eligibility for publicly funded child care shall be determined by the:
  - X Department.

Department, based on information collected by and submitted to the Department within calendar days of receipt to assure a timely determination of eligibility (see (7) (A) (2)). Provider.

ChildCare Resource and Referral agency serving the county.

- (2) All eligibility determinations shall be made no later than thirty calendar days from the date of receipt of a completed application for publicly funded child care services.
- (3) The Provider agrees to adhere to all applicable rules in Chapter 5101:2-16 of the Administrative Code.

#### (B) <u>Reimbursement</u>

- (1) Reimbursement shall be limited to days and hours of service authorized by the eligibility determiner.
- (2) If a contracted Provider provides services to a family that is potentially eligible for child care services and the family is subsequently determined eligible, the Department agrees to pay for services provided between the date the Department receives the family's completed application and the date the family's eligibility is determined.
- 8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS: Providers and employees of the Provider will act in performance of this contract in an independent capacity, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the State of Ohio or the Department. NOTE: Individuals who provide child care services are not employees of the Department, but are considered to be self-employed and, as such, are responsible for payment of any local, state or federal tax obligations on income earned through this agreement as well as for other requirements of self-employment which include, but are not limited to: reporting of income to the Internal Revenue Service; payment of social security taxes; purchasing insurance; establishing a retirement plan and other self-employment benefits, if desired. Individual home Providers may provide childcare in their homes for children who are not receiving publicly funded child care benefits. However, home Providers must maintain compliance with Section 5104.02 of the Revised Code which limits the total number of children for whom a provider may care.
- 9. **AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS:** The Provider shall keep all financial records related to this contract and the administration of child care services under this contract for a minimum period of three (3) years from the last date of payment made under this contract. The Provider will assure the maintenance of, for a like period of time, such records kept by any third party performing work related to this contract. Such records shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit by duly authorized federal, state and Department personnel. If any legal or fiscal action involving these records has been started before the end of the three-year period, the Provider shall keep the records until completion of the action on all issues or until the end of the three-year period, whichever is later.
- 10. **SAFEGUARDING OF CLIENT:** The Provider agrees that use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning eligible individuals for any purpose not directly related to the delivery of purchased child care services is prohibited except upon written consent of the eligible individual or a responsible parent or guardian.
- 11. **<u>CIVIL RIGHTS:</u>** The Provider agrees that in the performance of this contract or the hiring of employees, there shall be no discrimination, retaliation and/or intimidation against any client, child, employee, contractor, or any person acting on behalf of a contractor due to race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, age, or ancestry. It is further agreed that the Provider will comply with all appropriate federal and

state laws regarding discrimination and the right to any method of appeal shall be made available to all persons under this contract. Any Provider found to be out of compliance with this paragraph may be subject to investigation and termination of this contract.

12. **LICENSURE STATUS:** The Provider agrees to meet all (A) licensing requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services or the Ohio Department of Education, (B) certification requirements of the Ohio Department of Human Services and any approved additional county certification requirements, and (C) requirements of states in which border state child care providers are located. The Provider agrees to secure and maintain licenses or certificates as appropriate.

## 13. **INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:**

- (A) <u>Indemnity:</u> Provider agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Department, the Ohio Department of Human Services, and the Board of County Commissioners in which the Department is situated against any and all liability, loss, damage, and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this contract.
- (B) **Insurance:** Except a Provider who can demonstrate self-insurance or a Provider who chooses not to purchase insurance coverage (thereby assuming liability), the Provider agrees to contract for such insurance as is reasonably necessary to adequately secure the persons and estates of eligible individuals against reasonable foreseeable torts which would cause injury or death.
- 14. **Monitoring:** The Department and Provider will monitor the manner in which the terms of the contract are being carried out. The form and scope of monitoring and evaluation will be determined at the discretion of the Department.
- 15. **Breach or Default of Contract:** Upon breach or default of any of the provisions, obligations, or duties embodied in this contract, the Department may exercise any administrative, contractual, equitable or legal remedies available, without limitation. The waiver of any occurrence of breach or default is not a waiver of such subsequent occurrences, and the Department retains the right to exercise all remedies hereinabove mentioned. If the Provider or the Department fails to perform an obligation or obligations under this contract and such failure(s) is(are) waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular failure(s) so waived and shall not be deemed to waive other failure(s) hereunder. Waiver by the Department shall be authorized in writing and signed by the authorized Department representative.
- 16. **Termination:** This contract shall terminate automatically if: (1) the Provider fails to meet and maintain all licensing or certification requirements; (2) upon the discovery of illegal conduct; (3) upon the unavailability of state and federal funds; or (4) failure to honor the terms of this contract and related state, federal or local regulations. This contract may be terminated at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice by either party.

The effective date of the termination and the basis of settlement shall be addressed in a written notice, signed by an authorized representative of the Department and delivered to the Provider. Per the effective date of termination, the Provider shall cease providing services under this contract.

In the event of termination, the Provider shall be entitled to compensation, upon submission of a proper invoice, for the work performed prior to the notice of termination and based on the payment rates set forth in this contract. The Department shall not be liable for any further claims. If a contract maximum amount is stated as part of this agreement, claims submitted by the Provider shall not exceed this total amount under contract.

- 17. <u>Amendment of Contract:</u> This contract may be amended on a form developed by the Department. A contract may not be amended after the lapse or termination of the contract. Amendments must be signed by the Provider and the authorized representative of the Department prior to the effective date of the amendment.
- 18. <u>**Customary Charge:**</u> In signing this contract, the Provider certifies that the rates of reimbursement indicated in Article 4, except to the extent limited by state reimbursement ceilings, are the customary rates charged to the public.

Vote on Motion Mr. Ward Absent Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-974**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE CONTRACT BETWEEN JOB AND FAMILY SERVICES AND THE COUNCIL FOR OLDER ADULTS:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the contract:

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 20<sup>th</sup> day of November, 2000, by and between Delaware County Dept. of Jobs & Family Services (DJFS), 149 N. Sandusky St., Delaware, Ohio 43015 and Council for Older

Adults (COA), 236 West Central Ave., Delaware, Ohio 43015.

WHEREAS, the DJFS is required to provide Adult Protective Services to any person sixty years of age or older, as identified in and pursuant to Ohio Administrative Code Section 5101:2-20-01; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the DJFS to designate another agency to perform the department's duties as they relate to (1) investigating complaints of suspected abuse, neglect and/or exploitation, and, (2) the provision of Adult Protective Services; and

WHEREAS, the COA has proven its ability to recognize and understand the special needs of senior citizens and to provide services to senior citizens in Delaware County; and

WHEREAS, the COA has agreed to assume and provide the duties related to investigations and provision of Adult Protective Services on behalf of the DJFS.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

#### A. **COA agrees to:**

- 1. Serve as the lead agency for the investigation of referrals of suspected abuse, exploitation or neglect, evaluate the need for, and, when appropriate, make every effort to provide or arrange for the provision of protective services, pursuant to OAC Section 5101:2-20-01. These protective services may include, but are not necessarily limited to, case work services, medical care, mental health services, legal services, fiscal management, home health care, homemaker services, housing-related services, guardianship services, and placement services, as well as the provision of such commodities as food, clothing and shelter.
- 2. Provide DJFS with the beeper number for the designated COA staff member to be contacted as a resource to the on-call worker.
- 3. Provide monthly, quarterly and annual reports to the DJFS, by no later than fifteen (15) calendar days following the end of the reporting period, as follows:
  - (A) The Quarterly Report shall be in the format required by the DJFS for submission to the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.
  - (B) The annual report shall be in the format of the monthly report, with year-end totals for all information required on the monthly report.
- 4. Provide DJFS personnel access to all information pertinent to Adult Protective Services being rendered on behalf of DJFS including, but not limited to the progress of ongoing services, assessments and completed investigations.
- 5. Maintain, at a minimum, during the term of this Contract, Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability Insurance under a standard Comprehensive General/Automobile Liability Policy, which shall provide and include coverage, in an amount no less than \$100,000/\$300,000/\$100,000, on all Owned Automobiles and Non-Owned and Hired Automobiles, as well as Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all personnel and covering all sites subject to this contract.
- 6 Indemnify, defend and save harmless, for the period of this Contract, the DJFS, the Ohio Department of Jobs and Family Services and the Board of Delaware County Commissioners against any and all liability, loss, damage and/or related expenses incurred through the provision of services under this Contract, with the sole exception of gross negligence or willful or intentional conduct by DJFS or Delaware County officers, elected officials and employees.
- 7 Providers, agents and employees of COA will act in performance of this Contract as an independent contractor, and not as officers, employees or agents of the State of Ohio, DJFS or Delaware County.
- 8 To contract for an independent audit of all organizational income and expenses and to make copies of the audit available to the DJFS, or in the alternative, make all relevant records available to DJFS for review and inspection upon reasonable notice.

# B. DJFS agrees to:

1. Receive all initial calls or referrals for Adult Protective Services. After obtaining the necessary information, DJFS will contact appropriate COA staff by telephone regarding the call or referral received, within 24 hours for emergencies and 72 hours for non-emergencies. DJFS will send via fax, the same information in written form to COA as a follow-up.

DJFS agrees to provide 24 hour a day, 7 day a week emergency coverage for Adult Protective services referral under the same procedures currently utilized through the Child Protective Services Division of DJFS. Any referral received outside the normal work hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday) that is considered to be of an emergency nature will be responded to by the Child Protective Services Division of the DJFS. Any referral received outside the normal work hours that is considered a non-emergency referral will be forwarded by the DJFS to COA by the nest business day.

- 2. Inform COA of any Adult Protective Services training opportunities provided by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.
- Provide COA with any and all information received regarding State and/or Ohio Department of Jobs and Family Services laws and regulations concerning the provision of Adult Protective Services.
- 4. Pursuant to ORC Section 5101.751 evaluate the performance of COA not less than once annually. DJFS will immediately communicate any and all material concerns or issues related to COA's performance under this contract and will provide technical assistance to COA in an effort to resolve said any concerns or issues that left unresolved could lead to the termination of this Contract.
- 5. Advance to COA on a quarterly basis no less than one fourth of the total amount of \$49,600, contingent upon the continuation of state and local funding.

#### C. In addition to the above, DJFS and COA jointly agree to the following:

- 1. There will be no discrimination against any client, applicant or employee because of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, handicap, or any other factor as specified in Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and subsequent amendments. It is further agreed that all applicable federal and state laws regarding such discrimination and the right to and method of appeal will be made available to all persons under this Contract.
- 2. The County Prosecutor's office will continue to represent DJFS in Probate Court, as needed, with regard to petitioning the court for the provision of protective services. Such legal services will be provided at no cost to COA. COA will provide competent expert witness testimony as needed for these purposes. COA acknowledges that the Delaware County Prosecutor's office does not represent COA, nor can it give legal advice to COA on matters outside the scope of COA's role with regard to this Contract. All legal documents, including petitions presented to the court shall be jointly signed by representatives of COA and DJFS.
  - 3. Jointly COA and DJFS will participate and agree to adhere to established policy and subsequent revisions as suggested by the Adult Protective Services Task Force, with final approval by the COA Board of Trustees (see attachments).
- 4. This Contract will terminate upon fifteen (15) days written notice if COA fails to provide the Adult Protective Services mandated by applicable Ohio Revised Code and Ohio Administrative Code sections. Further, this contract may be terminated by either party upon sixty (60) days written notice, without cause or liability.
- 5. This Contract for Services will be effective upon notification by COA that qualified staff have been hired and trained and acknowledge that in no case will this contract begin prior to December 1, 2000 nor later than February 1, 2001. The annual budget period shall commence on the date that COA assumes responsibility under this contract and continue for one year.

In witness whereof, the parties hereunto subscribed their signatures in conformance with the resolution of their respective governing bodies with the intent to be legally bound hereby.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent Mrs. Martin	Aye
----------------	------------	-----	----------	--------------------	-----

#### **RESOLUTION NO. 00-975**

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A COMPUTERIZED REPORTING SYSTEM FOR PROVIDING EMERGENCY TRAUMA DATA TO THE STATE OF OHIO:

It was moved by Mrs. Martin, seconded by Mr. Wuertz to adopt the following Resolution:

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has mandated that all Emergency Medical Service Organizations provide emergency trauma data to the Ohio Public Safety Department in support of the Crash Injury Research and Engineering Network (CIREN), and WHEREAS, Penn Care was the only vendor identified with a mobile system that includes both hardware and a software application capable of providing the required data, and

WHEREAS, the County Data Board has reviewed this project and approved it for recommendation to the Board of Commissioners;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That the Board of County Commissioners of Delaware County hereby approve this recommendation for the purchase of the Penn Care computerized reporting system at a cost of \$48,954.85 for 10 mobile units and one base unit.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners shall cause this Resolution to be spread upon the Board's Official Journal.

Vote on Motion Mrs. Martin Aye Mr. Wuertz Aye Mr. Ward Absent

**RESOLUTION NO. 00-976** 

# IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE SANITARY SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENTS FOR HIGHLAND LAKES EAST, SECTION 11, PHASES 4 & 5:

It was moved by Mr. Wuertz, seconded by Mrs. Martin to approve the subdivider's agreements:

#### Highland Lakes East, Section 11, Phase 4

This agreement executed on this 20<sup>th</sup> day of November, 2000, by and between DOMINION HOMES SUBDIVIDER, as evidenced by the HIGHLAND LAKES EAST, SECTION 11, PHASE 4 and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of Delaware County, Ohio is governed by the following considerations and conditions, to wit:

The SUBDIVIDER shall upon executing this AGREEMENT, pay to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER \$70,800.00, representing the payment of fifty percent (50%) of the capacity charges then in effect, for each single family residential connection, for 24 equivalent single family residential connections. The remaining capacity charge shall be fifty percent (50%) of the rate currently in effect at the time connection is made and shall be paid for each single family residential connection upon application to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER for a tap permit to connect the single family residence to the sanitary sewer. Ownership of more than one (1) lot will not cause aggregation of the payments.

Said SUBDIVIDER is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this AGREEMENT; said SUBDIVIDER is to execute Bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of construction (\$55,000.00) which is acceptable to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS to insure faithful performance of this AGREEMENT and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio. The SUBDIVIDER shall pay the entire cost and expense of said improvements.

The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and save harmless the County, Townships and/or Villages and all of their officials, employees and agents for mall claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any action, or omissions of any contractor or sub-contractor or from any material, method or explosive used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one (1) year from the date of the approval of said SUBDIVIDER by THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS but extension of time may be granted if approved by the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading the plans and specifications and shall have authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the COUNTY. The representative shall be replaced by the Subdivider, when in the opinion of the COUNTY, his performance is deemed inadequate.

The SUBDIVIDER further agrees that any violations of or noncompliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a breach of contract, and the County shall have the right to stop work forthwith and act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this Subdivision.

#### SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION

It is further agreed that upon execution of the Agreement, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit, with the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER the sum of \$3,300.00 estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER. The DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER shall in his sole discretion inspect, as necessary, the IMPROVEMENTS being installed or constructed by the SUBDIVIDER and shall keep accurate records of the time spent by his employees and agents in such inspections for which the SANITARY ENGINEER shall be reimbursed from charges against said deposit. At such time as said fund, as result of charges against the same at the rate of:

INSPECTOR \$60.00 CAMERA TRUCK \$150.00 per hour for time spent by said SANITARY ENGINEER or his staff has been depleted to a level of less than \$1,000.00, the SUBDIVIDER shall make an additional deposit of \$1,000.00 to said fund. On completion of all IMPROVEMENTS provided herein and acceptance of same by the COUNTY, any unused portions of the inspection fund shall be repaid to the SUBDIVIDER less an amount equal to \$0.50 per foot of sewer which will be deducted to cover the one year reinspection.

The SUBDIVIDER for a period of five (5) year after acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS by the COUNTY, shall be responsible for defective materials and or workmanship. All warranties for equipment installed as part of the IMPROVEMENTS shall be the same as new equipment warranties and shall be assigned to the COUNTY upon acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The subdivider shall provide to the COUNTY all necessary easements or right of ways required to complete the IMPROVEMENTS all of which shall be obtained at the expense of the SUBDIVIDER.

The COUNTY shall upon certification in writing from the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER that all construction is complete according to the plans and specifications by Resolution accept the IMPROVEMENTS described herein and accept and assume operations and maintenance of the same. ALL CONSTRUCTION UNDER COUNTY JURISDICTION

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to DELAWARE COUNTY as required, as built drawings on the IMPROVEMENTS which plans shall become the property of the COUNTY and shall remain in the office of the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER and DELAWARE COUNTY ENGINEER. The drawings shall be on reproducible Mylar and 3.5@ or 5.25@ Diskettes in either Autocade DWG files or DXF files.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the COUNTY an itemized statement showing the cost of IMPROVEMENTS and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY from expenses or claims for labor or materials incident to said construction of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER a five (5) year maintenance Bond or other approved financial warranties, equal to ten percent (10%) of the construction cost.

The SUBDIVIDER shall during the construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the COUNTY regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The SUBDIVIDER shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of said IMPROVEMENTS AND FOR THEIR CONTINUED OPERATION. The SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. The utility user charges shall be paid by the SUBDIVIDER and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the COUNTY.

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this AGREEMENT.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, the DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS hereby grants the SUBDIVIDER or his agent the right and privilege to make the IMPROVEMENTS stipulated herein and as shown on the approved plans.

#### Highland Lakes East, Section 11, Phase 5

This agreement executed on this 20<sup>th</sup> day of November, 2000, by and between DOMINION HOMES SUBDIVIDER, as evidenced by the HIGHLAND LAKES EAST, SECTION 11, PHASE 5 and the BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of Delaware County, Ohio is governed by the following considerations and conditions, to wit:

The SUBDIVIDER shall upon executing this AGREEMENT, pay to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER \$61,950.00, representing the payment of fifty percent (50%) of the capacity charges then in effect, for each single family residential connection, for 21 equivalent single family residential connections. The remaining capacity charge shall be fifty percent (50%) of the rate currently in effect at the time connection is made and shall be paid for each single family residential connect the single family residence to the Sanitary sewer. Ownership of more than one (1) lot will not cause aggregation of the payments.

Said SUBDIVIDER is to construct, install or otherwise make all public improvements shown and set forth to be done and performed in compliance with the approved engineering drawings and specifications, all of which are a part of this AGREEMENT; said SUBDIVIDER is to execute Bond, certified check, irrevocable letter of credit, or other approved financial warranties equal to the cost of construction (\$39,000.00) which is acceptable to the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS to insure faithful performance of this AGREEMENT and the completion of all improvements in accordance with the Subdivision Regulations of Delaware County, Ohio. The SUBDIVIDER shall pay the entire cost and expense of said improvements.

The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and save harmless the County, Townships and/or Villages and all of their officials, employees and agents for mall claims, suits, actions and proceedings which may originate from or on account of any death, injuries or damages to persons or property received or sustained as a consequence of any action, or omissions of any contractor or sub-contractor or from any material, method or explosive used in said work or by or on account of any accident caused by negligence or any other act or omission of any contractor or his agents or employees.

All public improvement construction shall be performed within one (1) year from the date of the

approval of said SUBDIVIDER by THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS but extension of time may be granted if approved by the COUNTY COMMISSIONERS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall have a competent representative who is familiar with the project on site during construction. The representative shall be capable of reading the plans and specifications and shall have authority to execute the plans and specifications and alterations required by the COUNTY. The representative shall be replaced by the Subdivider, when in the opinion of the COUNTY, his performance is deemed inadequate.

The SUBDIVIDER further agrees that any violations of or noncompliance with any of the provisions and stipulations of this AGREEMENT shall constitute a breach of contract, and the County shall have the right to stop work forthwith and act against the performance surety for the purpose of proper completion of the public improvements within this Subdivision.

#### SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION

It is further agreed that upon execution of the Agreement, the SUBDIVIDER shall deposit, with the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER the sum of \$2,340.00 estimated to be necessary to pay the cost of inspection by the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER. The DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER shall in his sole discretion inspect, as necessary, the IMPROVEMENTS being installed or constructed by the SUBDIVIDER and shall keep accurate records of the time spent by his employees and agents in such inspections for which the SANITARY ENGINEER shall be reimbursed from charges against said deposit. At such time as said fund, as result of charges against the same at the rate of:

#### INSPECTOR \$60.00 CAMERA TRUCK \$150.00

per hour for time spent by said SANITARY ENGINEER or his staff has been depleted to a level of less than \$1,000.00, the SUBDIVIDER shall make an additional deposit of \$1,000.00 to said fund. On completion of all IMPROVEMENTS provided herein and acceptance of same by the COUNTY, any unused portions of the inspection fund shall be repaid to the SUBDIVIDER less an amount equal to \$0.50 per foot of sewer which will be deducted to cover the one year reinspection.

The SUBDIVIDER for a period of five (5) year after acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS by the COUNTY, shall be responsible for defective materials and or workmanship. All warranties for equipment installed as part of the IMPROVEMENTS shall be the same as new equipment warranties and shall be assigned to the COUNTY upon acceptance of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The subdivider shall provide to the COUNTY all necessary easements or right of ways required to complete the IMPROVEMENTS all of which shall be obtained at the expense of the SUBDIVIDER.

The COUNTY shall upon certification in writing from the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER that all construction is complete according to the plans and specifications by Resolution accept the IMPROVEMENTS described herein and accept and assume operations and maintenance of the same. <u>ALL CONSTRUCTION UNDER COUNTY JURISDICTION</u>

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to DELAWARE COUNTY as required, as built drawings on the IMPROVEMENTS which plans shall become the property of the COUNTY and shall remain in the office of the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER and DELAWARE COUNTY ENGINEER. The drawings shall be on reproducible Mylar and 3.5@ or 5.25@ Diskettes in either Autocade DWG files or DXF files.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days of completion of construction, furnish to the COUNTY an itemized statement showing the cost of IMPROVEMENTS and an affidavit that all material and labor costs have been paid. The SUBDIVIDER shall indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY from expenses or claims for labor or materials incident to said construction of the IMPROVEMENTS.

The SUBDIVIDER shall within thirty (30) days following completion of construction, and prior to final acceptance, furnish to the DELAWARE COUNTY SANITARY ENGINEER a five (5) year maintenance Bond or other approved financial warranties, equal to ten percent (10%) of the construction cost.

The SUBDIVIDER shall during the construction and maintenance periods, comply with all rules and regulations and conform to all procedures established by the COUNTY regarding submission of shop drawings, construction schedules, operation of facilities and other matters incident hereto.

The SUBDIVIDER shall obtain all other necessary utility services incident to the construction of said IMPROVEMENTS AND FOR THEIR CONTINUED OPERATION. The SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all utility charges and installation costs. The utility user charges shall be paid by the SUBDIVIDER and maintained in continuous use throughout the construction and testing phases until accepted for operation and maintenance by the COUNTY.

Should the SUBDIVIDER become unable to carry out the provisions of this AGREEMENT, the SUBDIVIDER'S heirs, successors or assigns shall complete and comply with all applicable terms, conditions, provisions, and requirements of this AGREEMENT.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, the DELAWARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS hereby grants the SUBDIVIDER or his agent the right and privilege to make the IMPROVEMENTS stipulated herein and as shown on the approved plans.

Vote on Motion	Mr. Wuertz	Aye	Mr. Ward	Absent	Mrs. Martin	Aye

**Presentation – Debbie Schatzer – Convention and Visitor Bureau** 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.

Deborah Martin

James D. Ward

Donald Wuertz

Letha George, Clerk to the Commissioners